SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 4, 2014
9:07 a.m

9:07:52 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Gail Fenumai, Diorector, Division of Elections, Ofice of
the Lieutenant CGovernor; Representative Lora Reinbold;
Daniel Rawings, Menber, National Education Association
( NEA) ; I rene Mat hei s, Menber , Nat i onal Educati on
Associ ation; Valerie Spencer, Mnber, National Education
Associ ati on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

David Boyle, Self, Anchorage; Tom Fink, Self, Anchorage;
Patrick Shier, Self, Wasilla; Kristina Johannes, Self,
Anchorage; Randy Virgin, Self, Anchorage; Wayne Osky, Self,
Eagle River; Robert Pope, Self, Soldotna; Risti Dugan,
Self, Nenana; Barbara Eaton, Self, Eagle River; Mark
Waggin, Self, Anchorage; Kathleen Tonn, Self, Anchorage;
Cel este  Hodge, Executive Director, Shiloh  Community
Devel opnment I nc., Anchor age; John Baunei st er, Sel f,
Anchorage; Deborah Brollini, Self, Anchorage; Katherine



Hi cks, Self, Anchorage; Mria Rensel, Self, Fairbanks;
Candi ce Jesclard, Self, Anchorage.

SUMVARY
SJR 9 CONST. AM  EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

SIR 9 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sjr9
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 9

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State
of Alaska relating to state aid for education.

9:09:11 AM

GAIL FENUM AI, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF ELECTIONS, OFFICE OF
THE LI EUTENANT GOVERNOR, explained the fiscal note. She
stated that the fiscal note was from the Division of
El ections for $1,500. She stated that the cost reflected
the expenses associated with publishing information about
the constitutional anmendnent in the official election
panmphl et, which was required by statute. She stated that
the $22,000 that was noted in the analysis section would be
required if the constitutional anmendnent depended on the
division to go to a larger ballot. The $22,000 woul d cover
the cost of printing.

Senator Hoffrman queried what would necessitate the issue
going to the larger paper. M. Fenumai replied that it
woul d occur if there were a large amount of judges in a
judicial district or if there were a l|arge anmount of
constitutional amendnents or neasures that were appearing
on the general election ballot. She doubted that the |arger
ball ot would be required, but felt that the information was
necessary just in case.

9:11:22 AM

DAVID  BOYLE, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via t el econference),
testified in support of SJR 9. He felt that the authors of
the Alaska constitution intended no public funds were to
directly benefit religious or private educat i onal
i nstitutions. He expressed frustration wth the 1979
supreme court ruling that included the word "indirect" in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



regards to funding. He felt that the supreme court took the
| egislative prerogative for education away from the
| egi sl ature. He remarked that the current discussion would
not occur, had that ruling never taken place. He felt that
SJR 9 made it clear that the Al aska Legislature could make
choices with regard to the education of children in Al aska.
He stressed that the legislature could enact sound public
policy as bounded by the first anmendnment to the United
States Constitution. He remarked that there were high
nunber of individuals in Alaska who supported schoo
choi ce.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered if M. Boyle had testified
the previous day, but figured out that he had not already
testified.

9: 15: 37 AM

TOM FINK, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SIJR 9. He felt that the resolution would renove
the limt on the legislature to consider all options to
i nprove K-12 education. He stressed that the resolution
would renobve an inpedinent to good legislation on the
subject. He felt that the resolution nmust pass in order to
allow change. He remarked that the change would allow
parents to fulfill their duty to raise their children to
become good nenbers of society; and the change would al so
allow inprovenent to K-12 education through choice and
conpetition. He stated that there had been three statew de
polls over the last three years on this subject. He shared
that all three public showed public support for the
constitutional amendment . He stressed that the main
opposition to the resolution was from the Nationa

Educati on Association (NEA), which he felt had a nonopoly
on K-12 education in Al aska.

9:18: 52 AM

PATRI CK  SHI ER, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference),
testified in favor of SIJR 9. He stated that he had been
involved in education issues in Alaska for alnost three
decades. He stated that he had been a nenber of various
organi zations that worked on behalf of Al aska's school age
children. He stated that his wife was a teacher, and both
of his sons were teachers. He felt that he was intimtely
aware of i ssues that faced | ocal school districts,
teachers, and adm nistrators. He shared an anecdote about

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



how sonme small schools had opened to serve the needs of
students that were |living just outside of sonme school
districts near Anchorage.

9:21: 53 AM

KRI STI NA JOHANNES, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SJR 9. She felt that the | anguage
in the current constitution was anti-Catholic. He felt that
the | anguage derived from an aninmus against her religious
ancestors. She quoted the |anguage that would be in the
constitution, i f t he constitutional anmendnent wer e
ratified.

9:23: 54 AM

RANDY VIRGA N, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
in opposition to SJR 9. He shared that he was a parent of
two students in the Anchorage School District. He stated
that his sons had been able to apply to several different
schools in the district, and never felt that his choices
were restricted. He remarked that he was very satisfied
with alternative options. He felt that there was not enough
funding already for schools, so the finance options should
not be expanded to include private schools. He shared that,
in his research, the largest private school in Al aska was
the Anchorage Baptist Tenple. He was not in support of
diverting public noney to religious schools at the expense
of public funding.

9:26: 21 AM

WAYNE  OSKY, SELF, EAGLCE RIVER (via teleconference),
testified in support of SIJR 9. He felt that parents were
frustrated with the current system and hoped that the
| egi sl ation would pass to ease that frustration.

9:27:12 AM

DANI EL RAWLI NGS, MEMBER, NATI ONAL EDUCATI ON ASSOCI ATI ON
(NEA), testified in opposition to SIR 9. He was in a
teacher in the Anchorage School D strict. He stressed that
he was in support of school choice, but against the schoo

voucher system He shared that he had attended private
catholic schools in Chio in his youth. He stated that
Clevel and, OChio was a case study for school vouchers. He
stated that C eveland starting accepting school vouchers in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



the late 1990s, and he graduated from high school in 2003.
He observed that the school voucher system in GChio had
negati ve consequences. He stated that the system in
Cl evel and becanme a "voucher plus" system He felt that the
school vouchers did not even cone close to covering the
cost of tuition, so the schools would not make enough noney
to stay open.

Senator O son asked for an exanple of a negative
consequence of vouchers, understanding that Al aska had a 30
percent dropout rate in the public schools. M. Rawings
responded that there was not a 30 percent dropout rate in
the private schools in Ceveland, OChio. He stressed that
parents of private school children were actively involved
in their child s education. He felt that the tuition in
nost private schools was significantly higher than a
voucher would be, so the voucher system did not enhance the
choi ces of Al aska parents.

Senator O son wondered if that was the only negative thing
that M. Rawlings could think of. M. Rawings responded
that the voucher system would take noney away from the
public schools, so the public schools would be weakened
fromlack of funds.

Senat or Dunleavy wondered if M. Rawings thought that
children would | eave the public school from the passage of
the legislation, and if so, to what degree. M. Rawings
did not know, but felt that there would be a small
percentage of students that would nove on to the private
schools. He remarked that there would be cheap, private
education systenms that would sprout up and do not produce
the sane quality education as other private schools.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that the commttee should refrain
from asking too many questions of testifiers, because he
did not want to intimdate the testifiers.

9: 33: 38 AM

| RENE MATHEI'S, MEMBER, NATIONAL EDUCATI ON ASSCCl ATI ON,
spoke against SJR 9. She stated that the school that she
worked at was a Title 1 school, with 600 students. She felt
that there was a safety issue related to the nunber of
students and the nunber of teachers. She stressed that
there were many budget decreases in the state that had

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



resulted in layoffs of teachers, so diverting noney to
private schools would be detrinental to the public schools.

9:34: 53 AM

VALERI E SPENCER, MEMBER, NATI ONAL EDUCATI ON ASSOCI ATI QN,
testified in opposition to SIR 9. She stressed that the
benefit of living in the United States was the availability
of the best education possible. She was in supportive of
private and religious institutions, but felt that they did
not offer <choice for everyone. She stressed that the
private and religious schools had adm ssions policies that
of fer adm ssions for some students, but were not required
to admt every applicant. She shared that she was a single
not her and a non-tenured teacher, and nmade tw ce the per
capita inconme of the average Al aska. She stressed that,
even with $6,000 voucher, she would still not be able to
afford to send one of her children to a typical private
school in Anchorage. She felt that many other parents woul d
be in a simlar situation, and therefore the school voucher
system did not offer a real choice for parents and
students.

9:37:37 AM

ROBERT POPE, SELF, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference), testified
in opposition to SJIR 9. He stated that he and his famly
were lifelong Al askans. He felt that the founders of the
constitution had extensive discussions regardi ng whether or
not public funds should be used in private schools. He felt
that the focus should be on the issues wthin public
education, rather than noving that noney to private
school s.

9:39:40 AM

RI STI DUGAN, SELF, NENANA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SIJR 9. She felt that there should be nore
parental support of students and schools, but she did not
feel that the parental support would occur in the status
guo. She stressed that she wanted the best choice for her
children's education, but did not feel that it was related
to public funding. She felt that conpetition may encourage
t he public schools to enhance their performance.

9:40: 53 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



BARBARA EATON, SELF, EAGE RIVER (via teleconference),
testified in support of SJR 9. She felt that the federa
government was continually restricting Al askans. She felt
that choice was a part of the American and Al askan
tradition. She remarked that all of Al askans were affected
by the issue, so all of Al askans should have the
opportunity to vote on the anendnent. She felt that any
i ndi vidual who did not support the resolution would be on
the wong side of history, because she felt that all
Al askans were in support of this issue. She remarked that
school choi ce woul d not make educati on nore expensive.

9:42: 47 AM

MARK W GG N, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via tel econference), spoke in
opposition to SJIR 9. He believed that the resolution was a
way to force himto subsidize his noney for religious and
private academes. He felt that it was a levied tax in
support of religious schools. He cared about public
schools, and shared that his children had a very positive
experience in the Anchorage public school system He
understood that Al aska schools were not perfect, but they
were very good. He felt that diverting noney to religious
schools would force residents to either pay higher taxes or
sacrifice the vitality of the public schools.

9:45: 38 AM

KATHLEEN  TONN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SIJR 9. She stated that she was a
menber of the Anchorage Baptist Tenple. She shared that she
was in support of the resolution, because her children had
sonme very negative experiences in the public school system
Her children had a principal and sone peers who had died
while they were in school. She also felt public funds
should be used toward religious schools, because she felt
that tax payer noney was also being used to pay for
abortions.

9:49:48 AM

CELESTE HODGE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, SH LOH COVMUNI TY
DEVELOPMENT | NC., ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition to SJR 9. She stated that the Shiloh Comunity
Devel opnment | ncor por at ed was a | ocal non-profit
organi zation that enpowered youth, mnorities, and the
di sadvant aged. She explained that the organization's goal

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



was to enhance the quality of life for the less fortunate
by providing transitional assi st ance; econoni cal and
educat i onal opportunities; job search support; heal t h
education, prevention, and wellness prograns; and youth
mentoring. She spoke very strongly against SIJR 9, because
she felt it could be used as a tool to discrimnate.

9:51:40 AM

JOHN BAUMEI STER, SELF, ANCHORACE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SIJR 9. He felt that the parents were
ultimately responsible for the <child' s education. He
remarked that the success of a <child was directly
correlated to how involved the parent is in the child's
education. He felt that any tool that could be given to
parents to enhance the child s education was positive in
the long term He stressed that the voucher would only be a
percentage of what the expense of just one child. He felt
t hat because the voucher was only a percentage, there would
be nore noney per student in the public school system

9:53:49 AM

DEBORAH BROLLINI, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified against SIJR 9. She stated that her children had
attended both public and private schools. She did not
believe that there should be a constitutional amendnent in
support of funding private school education, because the
children in rural villages and districts would not have the
option to attend private schools. She wondered where the
famlies in extrenely rural comunities wuld use the
vouchers. She also expressed concerns about the l|ack of
standards and supervision in private schools. She felt that
her son had been academ cally and enotionally harnmed while
he attended a private el enentary school

9:55: 50 AM

KATHERI NE HI CKS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of SIJR 9. She remarked that Al askans do
not pay taxes, rather Al aska receives noney from the oi

conpanies. She felt that educators were blam ng parents for
the lack of participation in the failing schools in Al aska,
but the educators were now refusing to let the parents be
involved in the education choices of their children. She
felt that the teachers should either take responsibility
for what they were producing, or the teachers needed to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



all ow parents the choice to be involved in their children's
educati on.

9:57:44 AM

MARI A RENSEL, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in favor of SJR 9. She stated that she was raised
Catholic. She echoed the sentinments of the previous
testifiers who spoke in support of the resolution,
especially the comments of David Boyle and Tom Fink. She
felt that the resolution gave the people of Alaska a voice
in making the decision to renove the inpedinents to good
| egi sl ation. She stressed that nonopolies, |like the public
schools, end up keeping the costs high. She felt that the
vouchers would have a positive effect on state budgets for
educati on, because sone noney was |left behind in the public
school s.

10: 00: 31 AM

CANDI CE JESCLARD, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SJR 9. She felt that the citizens
of Al aska should be given the opportunity to decide if the
| anguage of the constitution should remain the sane. She
felt weary of a judge making the decision that she believed
parents should be nore involved in. She stated that she had
five grandchildren that were currently attending school in
t he Anchorage School District, and she hoped that the bil
woul d pass so Al askans could vote and nake their own choice
in the future of Al askan children

Co- Chair Meyer CLOSED public testinony.

10: 03: 58 AM

Senator Dunleavy stated that SIJR 9, if passed by both
bodi es  of the legislature, places a constitutional
anmendnent before the voters in the general election in the
fall of 2014. This ballot proposal provides voters a chance
to amend the Al aska Constitution to allow the use of public

noney for t he benefi t of al | Al askans seeki ng
educational/training aid, regardless of whether individuals
enroll in public or private institutions. Currently the

Al aska Constitution prohibits the use of public funds for
the direct benefit of any private educational institution.
The courts have determined that this ban extends to state
funds being allotted to individual Al askans who choose to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



attend a private school. Meanwhile an increasing nunber of
Al askans are questioning the constitutionality of the |ong-
standing practice of giving educational schol arships/grants
to adults for educational and training purposes while
denying children the sane funding opportunities. Passage of
SJR 9 clarifies the question on the constitutionality of
current educational practices. Mre than that, the ballot
guestion allows the voters to decide whether to maintain or
abolish the restrictions on the use of public dollars for
t he education of children. SIR 9 gives the voters the power
to decide what is right for them their famlies and the
State of Alaska. It is inmportant to note that even with the
adoption of this constitutional anendnment by a majority of
voters, the Legislature still needs to have a robust
di scussion on how to go forward. These deliberations wll
occur before any Alaskan child receives state funds to
attend a private educational institution. The passage of
SJR 9 all ows these discussions to begin.

10: 13: 56 AM

Senator Dunl eavy stressed that the issue should be focused
on and determned by all Al askans. He remarked that the
choi ce shoul d be made by all Al askans.

Co- Chair Meyer queried Senator Dunleavy's background in the
education system Senator Dunleavy responded that he was a
graduate of public schools; he attended both state and
private colleges; he received his naster's degree at UAF,;
he had been a teacher, assistant principal, principal,
director of various departnents, assistant superintendent,
and superintendent; he had been both a school board nenber
and school board president in the Mitsu; and a fornmer
menber of the NEA

Senator O son felt that there may be sone people in rural
Al aska who may not be able to make the choice on how to
vote on the issue, because they were unable to becone
educated on the subject. Senator Dunleavy replied that
t hose people should be given the opportunity to vote on the
i ssue.

10: 18: 55 AM

Senator O son stressed that he is a representative of the
peopl e of Alaska, so his constituents had entrusted himto
make an educated decision. Senator Dunleavy responded that

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



he was given the opportunity to make the choice to allow
Al askans to discuss the issue.

Senator dson felt that constitutional anmendnments and
ballot intiatives were different ways to determ ne what
Al askans desire. He expressed concern regarding the high
school graduation rate in the state. He felt that should be
the main focus of the conversation. Senator Dunleavy
responded that if the graduation did not inprove and had a
harnful inpact on the state, he would engage in that
conversation

Co-Chair Kelly felt that the state needed to have a
conversation regarding education. He felt that special
interest groups often domnated the conversation. He
remarked that there was nore to education than the base
student allocation (BSA). He felt that the teachers in
public schools were very good, but stressed that the system
needed reform He did not like the continual conversation
regarding increasing the BSA. He appreciated that the
conversation has changed to reform He felt that the
constitutional amendment spurred conversation about reform

10: 25: 09 AM

Senat or Bi shop agreed that the discussion was inportant. He
felt that the legislature needed to recognize the problens
and sol ve those issues before the need for a constitutional
anmendnent .

Senator Hoffrman shared that he had many concerns, which he
woul d share at a | ater date.

SJIR 9 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
10: 27: 07 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:27 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 02/ 04/ 14 9:07 A M



